
NOTICE 

OF

MEETING

WINDSOR RURAL DEVELOPMENT 
MANAGEMENT PANEL

will meet on

WEDNESDAY, 15TH NOVEMBER, 2017

At 7.00 pm

in the

COUNCIL CHAMBER - GUILDHALL, WINDSOR 

TO: MEMBERS OF THE WINDSOR RURAL DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT PANEL

COUNCILLORS DR LILLY EVANS (CHAIRMAN), COLIN RAYNER (VICE-CHAIRMAN), 
MICHAEL AIREY, CHRISTINE BATESON, DAVID HILTON, JOHN LENTON, 
JULIAN SHARPE, LYNDA YONG AND MALCOLM BEER 

SUBSTITUTE MEMBERS
COUNCILLORS JOHN BOWDEN, SAYONARA LUXTON, NICOLA PRYER, 
EILEEN QUICK, JACK RANKIN, WESLEY RICHARDS, SAMANTHA RAYNER, 
JOHN STORY AND LYNNE JONES

Karen Shepherd - Democratic Services Manager - Issued: Tuesday, 7 November 2017

Members of the Press and Public are welcome to attend Part I of this meeting. The agenda is available on the Council’s 
web site at www.rbwm.gov.uk or contact the Panel Administrator Andy Carswell 01628 796319

Fire Alarm - In the event of the fire alarm sounding or other emergency, please leave the building quickly and calmly 
by the nearest exit.  Do not stop to collect personal belongings and do not use the lifts.  Do not re-enter the building 
until told to do so by a member of staff.

Recording of Meetings –In line with the council’s commitment to transparency the meeting will be audio recorded, 
and filmed and broadcast through the online application Periscope. The footage can be found through the council’s 
main Twitter feed @RBWM or via the Periscope website. The audio recording will also be made available on the 
RBWM website, after the meeting. 

Filming, recording and photography of public Council meetings  may be undertaken by any person attending the 
meeting. By entering the meeting room you are acknowledging that you may be audio or video recorded and that this 
recording will be in the public domain. If you have any questions regarding the council’s policy, please speak to the 
Democratic Services or Legal representative at the meeting.

Public Document Pack

http://www.rbwm.gov.uk/
http://www.rbwm.gov.uk/


AGENDA

PART I
ITEM SUBJECT PAGE 

NO

1.  APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

To receive any apologies for absence.
 

2.  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

To receive any Declarations of Interest.
 

5 - 6

3.  MINUTES

To confirm the Part I Minutes of the meeting of the previous meeting
 

7 - 8

4.  PLANNING APPLICATIONS (DECISION)

To consider the Director of Development & Regeneration / Development 
Control Manager’s report on planning applications received.

Full details on all planning applications (including application forms, site 
plans, objections received, correspondence etc.) can be found by accessing 
the Planning Applications Public Access Module by selecting the following 
link. http://www.rbwm.gov.uk/pam/search.jsp or from Democratic Services on 
01628 796251 or democratic.services@rbwm.gov.uk 
 

9 - 60

5.  ESSENTIAL MONITORING REPORTS (MONITORING)

To consider the Essential Monitoring Reports.
 

61 - 64

6.  LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 - EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC

To consider passing the following resolution:
 
“That under Section 100(A)(4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the public 
be excluded from the remainder of the meeting whilst discussion takes place 
on item 7 on the grounds that they involve the likely disclosure of exempt 
information as defined in Paragraphs 1-7 of part I of Schedule 12A of the Act."
 

http://www.rbwm.gov.uk/pam/search.jsp
mailto:democratic.services@rbwm.gov.uk


PART II

ITEM SUBJECT PAGE 
NO

7.  MINUTES 

To confirm the Part II Minutes of the meeting held on October 18th 2017.

(Not for publication by virtue of Paragraph 6 of Part 1 of Schedule 
12A of the Local Government Act 1972)

65 - 66





LOCAL GOVERNMENT (ACCESS TO INFORMATION) ACT 1985 
 
In accordance with the requirements of the Local Government (Access to Information) 
Act 
1985, each item on this report includes a list of Background Papers that have been 
relied 
on to a material extent in the formulation of the report and recommendation. 
The list of Background Papers will normally include relevant previous planning decisions, 
replies to formal consultations and relevant letter of representation received from local 
societies, and members of the public. For ease of reference, the total number of letters 
received from members of the public will normally be listed as a single Background 
Paper, 
although a distinction will be made where contrary views are expressed. Any replies to 
consultations that are not received by the time the report goes to print will be recorded 
as 
“Comments Awaited”. 
The list will not include published documents such as the Town and Country Planning 
Acts 
and associated legislation, Department of the Environment Circulars, the Berkshire 
Structure Plan, Statutory Local Plans or other forms of Supplementary Planning 
Guidance, 
as the instructions, advice and policies contained within these documents are common 
to 
the determination of all planning applications. Any reference to any of these documents 
will be made as necessary under the heading “Remarks”. 
 
STATEMENT OF THE HUMAN RIGHTS ACT 1998 
 
The Human Rights Act 1998 was brought into force in this country on 2nd October 2000, 
and it will now, subject to certain exceptions, be directly unlawful for a public authority to 
act in a way which is incompatible with a Convention right. In particular, Article 8 
(respect 
for private and family life) and Article 1 of Protocol 1 (peaceful enjoyment of property) 
apply to planning decisions. When a planning decision is to be made however, there is 
further provision that a public authority must take into account the public interest. In the 
vast majority of cases existing planning law has for many years demanded a balancing 
exercise between private rights and public interest, and therefore much of this authority’s 
decision making will continue to take into account this balance. 
The Human Rights Act will not be referred to in the Officer’s report for individual 
applications beyond this general statement, unless there are exceptional circumstances 
which demand more careful and sensitive consideration of Human Rights issues. 

5

Agenda Item 2



MEMBERS’ GUIDANCE NOTE 
 

DECLARING INTERESTS IN MEETINGS 
 
 

DISCLOSABLE PECUNIARY INTERESTS (DPIs) 
 
 
DPIs include: 
 

 Any employment, office, trade, profession or vocation carried on for profit or gain. 

 Any payment or provision of any other financial benefit made in respect of any 
expenses occurred in carrying out member duties or election expenses. 

 Any contract under which goods and services are to be provided/works to be executed 
which has not been fully discharged. 

 Any beneficial interest in land within the area of the relevant authority. 

 Any license to occupy land in the area of the relevant authority for a month or longer. 

 Any tenancy where the landlord is the relevant authority, and the tenant is a body in 
which the relevant person has a beneficial interest. 

 Any beneficial interest in securities of a body where  
a) that body has a piece of business or land in the area of the relevant authority, 
and  
b) either (i) the total nominal value of the securities exceeds £25,000 or one 
hundredth of the total issued share capital of that body or (ii) the total nominal 
value of the shares of any one class belonging to the relevant person exceeds one 
hundredth of the total issued share capital of that class. 

 
PREJUDICIAL INTERESTS 
This is an interest which a reasonable fair minded and informed member of the public would 
reasonably believe is so significant that it harms or impairs your ability to judge the public 
interest. That is, your decision making is influenced by your interest that you are not able to 
impartially consider only relevant issues.   
 
DECLARING INTERESTS 
If you have not disclosed your interest in the register, you must make the declaration of 
interest at the beginning of the meeting, or as soon as you are aware that you have a DPI or  
Prejudicial Interest.  If you have already disclosed the interest in your Register of Interests 
you are still required to disclose this in the meeting if it relates to the matter being discussed.  
A member with a DPI or Prejudicial Interest may make representations at the start of the 
item but  must not take part in discussion or vote at a meeting. The term ‘discussion’ 
has been taken to mean a discussion by the members of the committee or other body 
determining the issue.  You should notify Democratic Services before the meeting of your 
intention to speak. In order to avoid any accusations of taking part in the discussion or vote, 
you must move to the public area, having made your representations.  
 
If you have any queries then you should obtain advice from the Legal or Democratic Services 
Officer before participating in the meeting. 
 
If the interest declared has not been entered on to your Register of Interests, you must notify 
the Monitoring Officer in writing within the next 28 days following the meeting.  
 
 
 

6



WINDSOR RURAL DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT PANEL

WEDNESDAY, 18 OCTOBER 2017

PRESENT: Councillors Dr Lilly Evans (Chairman), Colin Rayner (Vice-Chairman), 
Michael Airey, Christine Bateson, David Hilton, John Lenton, Julian Sharpe, 
Lynda Yong and Malcolm Beer

Officers: Chris Sawden, Mary Severin, Victoria Goldberg, Shilpa Manek and Ashley 
Smith

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 

No Apologies of Absence were received.

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

Councillor Lenton – Declared a personal interest in item 1 as he was a Member of 
Wraysbury Parish Council but had taken no part in any discussions on the item and confirmed 
he attended Panel with an open mind.

Councillor Hilton – Declared a personal interest in item 1 as a member of Sunninghill and 
Ascot Parish Council. He stated that he would speak but not vote on this item. Councillor 
Hilton also informed the Panel that his wife was the Chairman at Sunninghill and Ascot Parish 
Council and had registered to speak at Panel on the item.

MINUTES 

RESOLVED UNANIMOUSLY: That the minutes of the meeting held on 20 September 
2017 were agreed as an accurate record.

Councillor Beer expressed concern that he felt the minutes had not recorded the 
discussion that was had before the decisions were taken. Panel Members informed 
Councillor Beer that Minutes of the Planning Panels only recorded the decisions and 
the discussion could be heard on the Audio Recording.

PLANNING APPLICATIONS (DECISION) 

The Panel considered the Head of Planning and Development’s report on planning
applications and received updates in relation to a number of applications, following the
publication of the agenda.

NB: *Updates were received in relation to planning applications marked with an asterisk.

*17/02294/FULL

Former Four Seasons 
Bagshot Road 
Ascot 
SL5 9JL

6 Apartments with triple garage, pergola and bin 
store with associated parking and amenity 
(amendment to application 16/03203).

Councillor Bateson put forward a motion to refuse 
the Officer’s recommendation and defer the decision 
for one cycle in order for the applicant to provide:

 Further information on the siting of the 
hedge;

7

Agenda Item 3



 A detailed parking plan with actual sizing of 
each car park space;

 Further information on the cycle storage;
 All diagrams provided in 1:50 scale;
 Discussion of providing car charging points.
 The wording of condition 6 to specify that  

the landscaping scheme should include 
measures to prevent parking encroaching on 
soft landscaping areas e.g. fence/dwarf wall 
etc

This was seconded by Councillor Yong.

A named vote was carried out.

Councillors Bateson, Beer, L Evans, Lenton, Sharpe 
and Yong voted for the above motion. Councillors M 
Airey and C Rayner voted against the above motion. 
Councillor C Rayner was concerned about the costs 
to the Council. Councillor Hilton did not vote.

The PANEL VOTED that the application be 
DEFERRED for one cycle until all above 
information be provided.

ESSENTIAL MONITORING REPORTS (MONITORING) 

The Panel noted the essential monitoring reports.

Councillor Hilton asked where the Council was now in respect to flooding.

Councillor M Airey informed the Panel that he would speak to Jenifer Jackson and get more 
information on the Flood Policy, especially in light of the decisions taken. Councillor M Airey 
will report back at the next Panel.

ACTION: Councillor M Airey to inform Panel about the Flood Policy.

LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 - EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC 

The meeting, which began at 7.00 pm, finished at 8.30 pm

CHAIRMAN……………………………….

DATE………………………………..........

8



AGLIST

ROYAL BOROUGH OF WINDSOR & MAIDENHEAD

Windsor Rural Panel

15th November 2017

INDEX

APP = Approval

CLU = Certificate of Lawful Use

DD = Defer and Delegate

DLA = Defer Legal Agreement

PERM = Permit

PNR = Prior Approval Not Required

REF = Refusal

WA = Would Have Approved

WR = Would Have Refused

Item No. 1 Application No. 17/02294/FULL Recommendation PERM Page No.

Location: Former Four Seasons Bagshot Road Ascot SL5 9JL

Proposal: 6 Apartments with triple garage, pergola and bin store with associated parking and amenity (amendment to 
application 16/03203).

Applicant: Mr Mills Member Call-in: Expiry Date: 14 September 2017
___________________________________________________________________________________

Item No. 2 Application No. 17/02705/LBC Recommendation PERM Page No.

Location: Magna Carta House  1 Magna Carta Lane Wraysbury Staines TW19 5AF

Proposal: Internal layout alterations on the first floor to form guest rooms with ensuite. New drainage works.

Applicant: Mr Chen Member Call-in: Cllr John Lenton Expiry Date: 6 November 2017
___________________________________________________________________________________

Item No. 3 Application No. 17/02903/FULL Recommendation DD Page No.

Location: Land At Priory Lodge Priory Road Sunningdale Ascot 

Proposal: Construction of a detached five bedroom dwelling and integral garage, with associated access, landscaping 
and boundary treatment

Applicant: Mr Scott Member Call-in: Cllr Mrs Christine Bateson Expiry Date: 17 November 2017
___________________________________________________________________________________

9

Agenda Item 4



This page is intentionally left blank



ROYAL BOROUGH OF WINDSOR & MAIDENHEAD
PLANNING COMMITTEE

WINDSOR RURAL DEVELOPMENT CONTROL PANEL

15 November 2017 Item: 1
Application
No.:

17/02294/FULL

Location: Former Four Seasons Bagshot Road Ascot SL5 9JL
Proposal: 6 Apartments with triple garage, pergola and bin store with associated parking and

amenity (amendment to application 16/03203).
Applicant: Mr Mills
Agent: Mrs Kerri Gallup-Judd
Parish/Ward: Sunninghill And Ascot Parish/Sunninghill And South Ascot Ward

If you have a question about this report, please contact: Adam Jackson on 01628 796660 or at
adam.jackson@rbwm.gov.uk

1. SUMMARY

1.1 The application is an amendment to 16/03203 which was granted planning permission on 11
April 2017 following the completion of a legal agreement to secure mitigation against the effects
of the development on the Chobham Common (part of the Thames Basin Heaths Special
Protection Area). Members agreed the principle of the development at the Panel meeting on the
8th February 2017. The current proposal seeks to amend the scheme to provide 6 apartments
instead of the approved 5 and makes changes to the parking layout at the front of the site to
accommodate this. There are no changes to the scale or positioning of the building as the
additional apartment would be created by dividing the large apartment on the second floor into
two units.

1.2 The new apartment generates a requirement for 2 additional parking spaces and it is proposed
to provide these to the south west of the site with one being underneath the pergola and the
other located just in front of it. The pergola will be increased in width to allow for the additional
parking spaces beneath it and as a result will sit further forward in the site. However, the pergola
would remain sited behind the proposed hedgerow that runs alongside it thereby minimising the
impact of the pergola on the street scene.

1.3 The application site is within a 5km zone of Chobham Common part of the Thames Basin Heath
Special Protection Area (SPA) which is an area designated to protect a network of important bird
conservation sites; the proposed development would likely have a harmful effect due to
increased visitor and recreation pressure. It is necessary therefore for mitigation to be secured in
the form of SANG (Suitable Alternative Natural Green Space) SAMM (Strategic Access
Management and Monitoring) via a separate legal agreement.

1.4 This application was deferred from the Windsor Rural Panel on the 18th October. Members asked
for the following issues to be clarified:

 Precise siting of the proposed hedge
 Size of the parking spaces
 Possibility of providing electric charging points
 Details of cycle storage
 Requirements of the landscaping condition

1.5 An updated set of site plans have been submitted including one at a scale of 1:50 to show the
parking layout in more detail. This shows that there is sufficient space beneath the pergola to
provide 3 parking spaces, each with a width of 2.4m and length of 4.8m. Highways have been
consulted on the changed parking layout, however, no comments have been received at the
time of writing this report. It was reported to the panel on the 18th October that the hedge which
sits forward of the pergola has not moved from its approved position under application

11



16/03203. This is not correct as the hedge is approximately 1 metre further forward in the site.
The key point, however, is that the pergola remains situated behind this hedge and as such is
screened within the street scene.

1.6 The possibility of providing electric charging points has been raised with the agent/applicant,
however, no details of this has been submitted to date. Cycle storage details have been shown
on the updated site plans and further details of the cycle stores is provided on plan P6 615,
however, these are only sufficient to provide cycle storage for 3 flats, the garages are
insufficient in size to provide cycle storage and as such further details of cycle storage is
required by condition. The landscaping condition (condition 6) has been updated to require
details measures to be provided which will prevent parking on areas of soft landscaping.

1.7 Additional comments were received from SPAE on the 17th October, however, were not made
available to the planning case officer in time to be included within the update report for the last
panel meeting. These comments have therefore been summarised in section 8 below.

It is recommended the Panel authorises the Head of Planning:

1. To grant planning permission following the satisfactory completion of a legal
agreement which secures the necessary mitigation for the significant effect that the
proposal would have on Chobham Common, which is part of the SPA, with the
conditions listed in Section 10 of this report.

2. To refuse planning permission if a legal agreement to mitigate for the significant
impact on Chobham Common, which is part of the SPA has not been satisfactorily
completed by 13th December for the reason that the proposed development would
have a significant harmful effect on the SPA from increased visitor and recreational
pressure.

2. REASON FOR PANEL DETERMINATION

 The Council’s Constitution does not give the Head of Planning delegated powers to
determine the application in the way recommended, as the proposal is for more than two
residential units, such decisions can only be made by the Panel.

3. DESCRIPTION OF THE SITE AND ITS SURROUNDINGS

3.1 The site is situated at the south eastern edge of South Ascot. It covers an area of 0.22ha and
was formerly accommodated a large detached chalet bungalow known as ‘Four Seasons’: this
house has now been demolished. There are a number of mature trees at the frontage of the site,
including three protected oak trees, and clipped evergreen hedges along the full length of the
north-eastern side boundary with ‘Nagina’ and along most of the side boundary with ‘The Garden
House’ to the south-west.

3.2 To the north, south and west of the site there are a number of residential properties which are
mainly detached houses set in spacious settings. To the east are the wooded grounds of the
former King’s Beeches, which is sited within the Green Belt.

3.3 The oak trees along the frontage of the site are covered by TPO 35 of 2001. Trees in the
neighbouring property ‘Nagina’ are also covered by a TPO, as are the trees at the rear of the site
in the grounds of the former Kings Beeches, Devenish Road.

3.4 The site is located within the 5km ‘zone of influence’ of the Thames Basin Heaths Special
Protection Area (SPA).

4. DESCRIPTION OF THE PROPOSAL AND ANY RELEVANT PLANNING HISTORY

4.1 The proposal is to construct a building with six apartments (6 x 2 bedroom), along with a 3 car
garage and 11 additional exterior car parking spaces (3 of which are within a pergola/car port
structure).

12



4.2 The application follows other applications for 5 apartment schemes as listed below which
includes 2 extant permissions 14/00522 (allowed on appeal) and 16/03203.

Ref. Description Decision and Date

12/02010/FULL Construction of two detached dwellings,
both with detached garages, following
demolition of existing.

Refused 13.09.2012 and
subsequently dismissed at
appeal (PINS reference
APP/T0355/A/12/2186888)

12/02637/FULL Construction of replacement dwelling. Approved 19.12.2012

12/03471/FULL Construction of a five unit apartment
building, with associated garage, external
parking and landscaping, following
demolition of existing.

Refused 26.06.2014 and
subsequently dismissed at
appeal (PINS reference
APP/T0355/A/13/2193590)

14/00522/FULL Construction of a five unit apartment
building, with associated garage, external
parking and landscaping, following
demolition of existing.

Refused 26.06.2014 but
subsequently allowed at
appeal (PINS reference
APP/T0355/A/14/2226719)

15/01517/FULL New building to provide 4 x 2 No. bedroom
and 1 x 3 No. bedroom apartments,
detached triple garage, detached bin store,
associated parking and landscaping
following demolition of existing property.

Refused 26.10.2015 and
subsequently dismissed at
appeal (PINS reference
APP/T0355/A/3139436)

16/00243/FULL New building to provide 4 x 2 No. bedroom
and 1 x 3 No. bedroom apartments,
detached double and triple garage,
detached bin store, associated parking and
landscaping following demolition of existing
property.

Refused 21.03.2016

16/02310/FULL New building consisting of 5 No. apartments
with associated parking and amenity
following demolition of existing dwelling.

Refused 22.09.2016

16/03203/FULL 5 apartments with triple garage, pergola and
bin stores with associated parking and
amenity following demolition of existing
dwelling.

Permitted 11.04.2017

17/01537/FULL Alterations to current consent 16/03203 to
provide 6 no. apartments and 15 no. parking
spaces.

Withdrawn 14.07.2017

5. MAIN RELEVANT STRATEGIES AND POLICIES RELEVANT TO THE DECISION

5.1 National Planning Policy Framework Sections

Royal Borough Local Plan

5.2 The main strategic planning considerations applying to the site and the associated policies are:

Within
settlement area

Highways and
Parking

Trees and
Biodiversity

Local Plan DG1, H10, H11 P4, T5 N6
Neighbourhood

Plan
NP/DG1,
NP/DG2,
NP/DG3,
NP/DG5

NP/T1 NP/EN2, NP/EN3,
NP/EN4

13



These policies can be found at
https://www3.rbwm.gov.uk/downloads/download/154/local_plan_documents_and_appendices

Borough Local Plan: Submission Version

The NPPF sets out that decision-makers may give weight to relevant policies in emerging plans
according to their stage of preparation. The Borough Local Plan Proposed Submission
Document was published in June 2017. Public consultation runs from 30 June to September
2017 with the intention to submit the Plan to the Planning Inspectorate in October 2017. In this
context, the Borough Local Plan: Submission Version is a material consideration, but limited
weight is afforded to this document at this time.

This document can be found at:
http://rbwm.moderngov.co.uk/documents/s14392/Appendix%20A%20-
%20Borough%20Local%20Plan%20Submission%20Version.pdf

Supplementary planning documents

5.3 Supplementary planning documents adopted by the Council relevant to the proposal are:

 Thames Basin Heaths Special Protection Area (Part 1)

More information on these documents can be found at:
https://www3.rbwm.gov.uk/info/200414/local_development_framework/494/supplementary_planni
ng

Other Local Strategies or Publications

5.4 Other Strategies or publications relevant to the proposal are:

 RBWM Townscape Assessment – view at:
 RBWM Parking Strategy – view at:

More information on these documents can be found at:
https://www3.rbwm.gov.uk/info/200414/local_development_framework/494/supplementary_planni
ng

6. EXPLANATION OF RECOMMENDATION

6.1 The key issues for consideration are:

i Character

ii Residential amenity

iii Parking and highway safety

iv Trees and ecology

v Thames Basin Heath Special Protection Area

Character

6.2 The proposal is to build a 6 unit apartment building, a detached 3 car garage and to construct a
parking and turning area including a pergola to the front of the site. The main apartment building
and detached garage replicate the details found in the extant permission 16/03203, (5 flats) with
only internal alterations proposed to accommodate the additional residential unit. The scale and
design of the building has also been accepted in recent appeal decisions where the inspector
concluded that sufficient space would remain around the building and that the proposal appeared

14



sufficiently like a large villa to be compatible with the appearance and character of the area. The
position of the building and the principle of the garage and pergola at the front of the site have
also been established within previous applications and appeals.

6.3 In order to facilitate the additional residential unit 2 new parking spaces have been proposed to
the front of the site. One of these will be beneath the pergola with the other just in front of this
structure. The pergola will be increased in width to allow for the additional parking space beneath
it and as a result will site further forward in the site. Crucially, however, the pergola will remain
behind the proposed hedgerow that runs adjacent. The impact of the pergola on the street scene
would therefore remain minimal as it will be largely shielded from view by the hedge. The
additional hardstanding required is minimal and would not harm the character and appearance of
the area.

Residential amenity

6.4 The position and scale of the building is unchanged from the extant permission 16/03203 and as
such there would be no significant impact on the amenity of neighbouring properties from a loss
of light or outlook. There are some minor changes to the position of windows and the rooms
which they serve at first floor level on the side elevations, however, this will not result in additional
overlooking and can be satisfactorily addressed through the use of obscure glass, secured by
condition.

6.5 The decision on the appeal for 15/01517 noted evidence from the appellant to the effect that the
rooms at the back of the flats, including the ground and first floor living rooms, would not be
shaded by the existing trees in spring, summer or autumn, and concluded that future occupiers
would enjoy reasonable levels of sunlight in their homes. The size of the rear garden and
approximate positions of rear windows is similar to those in the allowed appeal scheme; no
objection on these grounds is therefore raised. Depths of the rear garden vary between 13.5m
and 18.5m, which are considered to provide an acceptable rear amenity space for the residents.

Parking and highway safety

6.6 The Highways Officer has previously confirmed that the existing access is sufficient for the
proposed use and expected vehicle movement per day can be comfortably accommodated. No
objections have been raised in this respect for the increased number of units. Car parking in
accordance with both Local and Neighbourhood Plan policies was considered in the 2014 appeal
decision, and it was considered by the Inspector that the proposals provided sufficient parking for
the likely demand in this location. Sufficient turning space has also been provided. 2 additional
spaces are required for the new unit and these have been provided to the south west of the site,
one beneath the pergola and the other just in front of the structure. The hardstanding beneath the
pergola is 7.2m wide and as such is sufficient for 3 car parking spaces (2.4m for each space),
there is also more than the required length for each parking space. 14 parking spaces are
provided in total, 12 for the proposed apartment building and 2 visitor spaces.

6.7 The garages are insufficient in size to provide cycle storage in addition to parked cars and as
such details of cycle storage will need to be secured via condition (see condition 10 in section 10
below).

Trees and ecology

6.8 Impacts on trees both at the front and rear of the property were considered at length in the 2014
appeal, where the Inspector considered that there would be no adverse impacts that cannot be
satisfactorily managed by conditions. The Council’s Tree Officer has raised concerns this time
around with additional parking spaces being provided within the root protection area (RPA) of the
Oak tree at the front of the site. In response to this the applicant has submitted an amended site
plan showing the parking spaces to be provided to the South West side of the site instead with
one of these spaces being beneath the proposed pergola.

15



6.9 An ecological walk over survey was carried out in 2014 and has been relied upon for the most
recent applications and appeals for this site; the survey states there is no evidence of the
presence of any protected species. The Inspector for appeal ref. APP/T0355/A/14/2226719
recommended conditions and mitigation measures in relation to this walk over survey; the 2015
appeal (APP/T0355/A/3139436) Inspector supported this approach and noted that they would
have added the same conditions had they been minded to allow the appeal. The survey is
considered recent enough and detailed enough to be relied upon and as such subject to the
condition recommended by the appeal Inspector, the impact on ecology is considered acceptable
(See condition 12 in section 10 below).

Thames Basin Heath Special Protection Area

6.10 The application site is within a 5km zone of the Thames Basin Heath Special Protection Area
(SPA) which is an area designated to protect a network of important bird conservation sites; the
proposed development would likely have a harmful effect on Chobham Common, which is part of
the SPA due to increased visitor and recreation pressure. It is necessary therefore for mitigation
to be secured in the form of SANG (Suitable Alternative Natural Green Space) SAMM (Strategic
Access Management and Monitoring). As per the appeal decision for 15/01517 it is considered
necessary for this mitigation to be secured by way of a separate section 111 legal agreement. At
the time of writing this report the Section 111 legal agreement has not yet been secured.

Other Material Considerations

Housing Land Supply

6.11 It is acknowledged that this scheme would make a contribution to the Borough’s housing stock
and it is the view of the Local Planning Authority that the socio-economic benefits of the
additional dwelling(s) would also weigh in favour of the development.

7. COMMUNITY INFRASTRUCTURE LEVY (CIL)

7.1 The application proposes a new residential development and therefore would be liable for a
Community Infrastructure Levy contribution. The proposal would generate a tariff based upon the
chargeable residential floor area at £240per sqm.

8. CONSULTATIONS CARRIED OUT

Comments from interested parties

5 occupiers were notified directly of the application.

The planning officer posted a notice advertising the application at the site on 24.07.2017

1 letter was received objecting to the application, summarised as:

Comment
Where in the
report this is
considered

1. Concerns were raised regarding the positioning of parking spaces within
the root protection area of protected trees.

Paragraph 6.8

2. Concerns were raised regarding the number of parking space which is
considered insufficient.

Paragraph 6.6

3. Concerns were raised over the adequacy of the existing access for
multiple and larger vehicles.

Paragraph 6.6

4. Concerns were raised regarding the scale of the development and the
impact this will have on the appearance of the plot and immediate area.

Paragraph 6.2

16



Statutory consultees

Consultee Comment
Where in the
report this is
considered

Natural
England

No objection subject to SANG and SAMM requirements
being met and Biodiversity enhancements being
incorporated.

Paragraph 6.10

Other consultees

Consultee Comment
Where in the
report this is
considered

Environmental
Protection

No objections subject to conditions N/A

Highways
Authority

No objections subject to conditions Paragraph’s 6.6
and 6.7

Tree Team Objects to application as it would introduce additional
hardstanding into the root protection area of the protected
mature Oak along the front of the site. An additional
parking space beneath the canopy of this tree will also
increase pressure to prune it due to falling debris.

Paragraph 6.8

Parish Council Objections as the committee still thought that there was
not enough parking and the extra spaces would adversely
affect the root protection area of an adjacent ancient oak
tree. The Parish Council thought that yet another
application on the site was vexatious.

Paragraphs 6.6
& 6.8

SPAE 1. Concerns were raised over the scale and bulk of
the development.

2. The development is not considered good quality
design.

3. The private amenity space is considered
insufficient for the occupants of 6 apartments.

4. Parking is considered to be insufficient and the
tandem parking arrangement inadequate.

5. The additional car parking risks impact on the root
protection areas of important trees.

Design issues
are considered
in paragraph’s
6.2 and 6.3.
parking issues
in paragraph’s
6.6 and 6.7 and
the impact on
trees in
paragraph’s 6.8
and 6.9

SPAE
additional
comments
(received 17th

October 2017)

The parking arrangements are inadequate and
unsustainable. Two parking spaces have been moved
from the side of the proposed garage to now be integral to
the pergola parking area. It is now proposed that the
pergola will be triple capacity instead of double-capacity
meaning that three vehicles will need to be squeezed into
a width of just of 6m wide. This will result in vehicles
parking on verges or on Bagshot Road.

Paragraphs 6.6
and 6.7

9. APPENDICES TO THIS REPORT

 Appendix A - Site location plan and site layout

 Appendix B – plan and elevation drawings

10. CONDITIONS RECOMMENDED FOR INCLUSION IF PERMISSION IS GRANTED

1 The development hereby permitted shall be commenced within three years from the date of this
permission.
Reason: To accord with the provisions of Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990
(as amended).

17



2 Development shall be carried out in accordance with the construction management plan
approved under application 17/01405/CONDIT. The plan shall be implemented as approved and
maintained for the duration of the works unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning
Authority.
Reason: In the interests of highway safety and the free flow of traffic. Relevant Policies - Local
Plan T5.

3 The erection of fencing for the protection of any retained tree and any other protection specified
shall be undertaken in accordance with the approved plans and the submitted arboricultural
impact assessment dated 09.10.2017 before any equipment, machinery or materials are brought
on to the site, and thereafter maintained until the completion of all construction work and all
equipment, machinery and surplus materials have been permanently removed from the site.
Nothing shall be stored or placed in any area fenced in accordance with this condition and the
ground levels within those areas shall not be altered, nor shall any excavation be made, without
the written approval of the Local Planning Authority.
Reason: To protect trees which contribute to the visual amenities of the site and surrounding
area. Relevant Policies - Local Plan DG1, N6.

4 No construction shall take place in association with the development until details including
samples if necessary of the materials to be used on the external surfaces of the development
have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The
development shall be carried out and maintained in accordance with the approved details.
Reason: In order to ensure that materials are selected prior to ordering of materials that will be
complimentary to the visual amenities of the area and will ensure compliance with the following
relevant policies: Local Plan DG1 and Neighbourhood Plan NP/DG1 and NP/DG3.

5 No development shall take place until there has been submitted to and approved in writing by the
Local Planning Authority a plan indicating the positions, design, materials and type of boundary
treatment to be erected. The boundary treatment shall be completed in accordance with a
timetable approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority . The development shall then be
carried out in accordance with the approved details and shall be retained as approved thereafter.
Reason: In order to ensure that any fences are designed in a way that is sympathetic to the
character of the area and takes into account impacts on trees and hedges, and will ensure
compliance with the following relevant policies: Local Plan DG1 and N6, and Neighbourhood Plan
NP/EN2, NP/DG1 and NP/DG3.

6 No development shall take place until full details of both hard and soft landscape works, including
measures to prevent parking on areas of soft landscaping, have been submitted to and approved
in writing by the Local Planning Authority and these works shall be carried out as approved within
the first planting season following the substantial completion of the development and retained in
accordance with the approved details. If within a period of five years from the date of planting of
any tree or shrub shown on the approved landscaping plan, that tree or shrub, or any tree or
shrub planted in replacement for it, is removed, uprooted or destroyed or dies, or becomes
seriously damaged or defective, another tree or shrub of the same species and size as that
originally planted shall be planted in the immediate vicinity, unless the Local Planning Authority
gives its prior written consent to any variation.
Reason: To ensure a form of development that maintains, and contributes positively to, the
character and appearance of the area. Relevant Policies - Local Plan DG1.

7 The development shall be carried out and maintained in accordance with the levels detailed on
drawing number 039-04 approved under application 17/01405/CONDIT unless otherwise agreed
in writing by the Local Planning Authority.
Reason: To ensure a scale of development that maintains the character and appearance of the
area. Relevant Policies - Local Plan DG1 and Neighbourhood Plan NP/DG1 and NP/DG3.

8 No part of the development shall be occupied until vehicle parking and turning space has been
provided, surfaced and marked out in accordance with the approved drawing. The space
approved shall be kept available for parking and turning in association with the development.
Reason: To ensure that the development is provided with adequate parking facilities in order to
reduce the likelihood of roadside parking which could be detrimental to the free flow of traffic and

18



to highway safety, and to facilitate vehicles entering and leaving the highway in forward gear.
Relevant Policies - Local Plan P4, DG1.

9 No part of the development shall be occupied until covered and secure cycle parking facilities
have been provided in accordance with details that have first been submitted to and approved in
writing by the Local Planning Authority. These facilities shall thereafter be kept available for the
parking of cycles in association with the development at all times.
Reason: To ensure that the development is provided with adequate parking facilities in order to
encourage the use of alternative modes of transport. Relevant Policies - Local Plan T7, DG1

10 No part of the development shall be occupied until the refuse bin storage area and recycling
facilities have been provided in accordance with the approved drawing. These facilities shall be
kept available for use in association with the development at all times.
Reason: To ensure that the development is provided with adequate facilities that allow it to be
serviced in a manner which would not adversely affect the free flow of traffic and highway safety
and to ensure the sustainability of the development. Relevant Policies - Local Plan T5, DG1.

11 No dwelling shall be occupied until the wildlife mitigation and habitat improvement measures
detailed within the 'Ecological Mitigation and Enhancement Strategy' approved under application
17/01405/CONDIT have been implemented in full. The approved measures shall be
subsequently be retained as such thereafter unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local
Planning Authority.
Reason: In order to comply with advice in the National Planning Policy Framework 2012 and
Neighbourhood Plan NP/EN4.

12 Irrespective of the provisions of the Town & Country Planning (General Permitted Development)
Order 1995 (or subsequent modifications thereof), the garage accommodation on the site shall
be kept available for the parking of vehicles associated with the development at all times.
Reason: To ensure that the development is provided with adequate parking facilities in order to
reduce the likelihood of roadside parking which could be detrimental to the free flow of traffic and
to highway safety. Relevant Policies - Local Plan P4, DG1.

13 The site is in close proximity to an historic contaminative land use i.e. Quarrying of sand & clay
and Unknown Filled Ground, in the event that unexpected soil contamination is found after
development has begun, development must be halted. The contamination must be reported in
writing immediately to the Local Planning Authority. An investigation and risk assessment must
be undertaken, and where remediation is necessary a remediation scheme must be prepared,
which is the subject of the approval in writing of the Local Planning Authority. Following
completion of measures identified in the approved remediation scheme a verification report must
be prepared, which is subject to the approval in writing of the Local Planning Authority.
Reason: To ensure that risks from land contamination to the future users of the land and the
neighbouring land are minimised, together with those to controlled waters, property and
ecological systems, and to ensure that the development can be carried out safely without
unacceptable risks to workers, neighbours and other offsite receptors. Relevant Policy Local Plan
NAP4.

14 The first floor flank elevation windows shall be of a permanently fixed, non-opening design, with
the exception of opening toplights that shall be set a minimum of 1.7m above the finished internal
floor level (FFL), and shall be fitted with obscure glass to a minimum 1.7m above FFL in the case
of rooms other than bathrooms / WCs, and fully obscure glazed in the case of bathrooms / WCs.
The second floor rooflights shall also be obscure glazed and, unless set with its lower edge a
minimum of 1.7m above the finished internal second floor level, shall be non-opening unless
otherwise first approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The windows and rooflights
shall not be altered without the prior written approval of the Local Planning Authority.
Reason: To prevent overlooking and loss of privacy to neighbouring occupiers, in accordance
with design advice in the NPPF.

15 No further flank wall(s) windows shall be inserted at first floor level or above and no additional
rooflight(s) shall be inserted at second floor level without the prior written approval of the Local
Planning Authority.

19



Reason: To prevent overlooking and loss of privacy to neighbouring occupiers, in accordance
with design advice in the NPPF.

16 The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the approved plans
listed below.
Reason: To ensure that the development is carried out in accordance with the approved
particulars and plans.

20



21



Proposed Block Plan 

22



Proposed Parking Layout 

23



24



25



26



27



28



29



30



31



32



Proposed Pergola Plan 

33



34



35



WINDSOR RURAL DEVELOPMENT CONTROL PANEL

15 November 2017 Item: 2
Application
No.:

17/02705/LBC

Location: Magna Carta House 1 Magna Carta Lane Wraysbury Staines TW19 5AF
Proposal: Internal layout alterations on the first floor to form guest rooms with ensuite. New

drainage works.
Applicant: Mr Chen
Agent: Ms Lily Li
Parish/Ward: Wraysbury Parish/Horton & Wraysbury Ward

If you have a question about this report, please contact: Olivia Mayell on or at
olivia.mayell@rbwm.gov.uk

1. SUMMARY

1.1 Magna Carta House is a Grade II Listed Building. The proposal is to add an additional two
bathrooms on the first floor and the associated drainage work. The application takes into account
the sensitivity of the heritage asset and alterations have been made to the original proposal
based on advice provided. The application is now acceptable in heritage terms and will ensure
the continued use of the building. In accordance with the NPPF para 134 the proposal’s less
than substantial harm is outweighed by the continued optimum use of the building, with the
public benefit of ensuring that this historically significant building is maintained and preserved.

It is recommended the Panel grants listed building consent with the conditions listed in
Section 10 of this report.

2. REASON FOR PANEL DETERMINATION

 Councillor Lenton requested the application be reviewed by the Panel as relates to a listed
building

3. DESCRIPTION OF THE SITE AND ITS SURROUNDINGS

3.1 Magna Carta House was built in 1824 by George Simon Harcourt to commemorate the sealing of
the Magna Carta. Originally a small irregular stone house in a Norman style, the building was
largely extended in painted white brick in the 1930’s by Robert Atkinson. The roofs are steeply
pitched with Welsh slate, gable ends and cylindrical stone chimneys. The main significance of the
building lies with its connection to the signing of the Magna Carta and its location on the island.
The Magna Carta Room, with its octagonal table and circular commemorative stone, is also
significant. Internally the building has been much altered although there remains good quality
imported 17th century Jacobean panelling and stained glass.

3.2 The house sits on its own island on the River Thames, at the edge of the borough’s boundary with
Runnymede Borough Council. The building is prominent from the A308 and sits comfortably within
3.7 acres of grass lawn with a border of yew trees. There are several small outbuildings located
close to the house including a cottage.

4. DESCRIPTION OF THE PROPOSAL AND ANY RELEVANT PLANNING HISTORY

Ref. Description Decision and Date

16/00745/LBC Consent for repairs and restoration works to roof
areas, chimneys, flooring in banquet room and
dry rot affected areas

Permitted 10.06.2016

4.1 These works have led to large amount of finish materials being removed from two of the first floor
rooms. This is where the alterations to include two more bathrooms have been proposed.

36



4.2 This application proposes the addition of two bathrooms on the first floor and includes the
associated drainage work that will link these two new bathrooms to the waste drain.

5. MAIN RELEVANT STRATEGIES AND POLICIES RELEVANT TO THE DECISION

5.1 Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990

Listed Buildings
With respect to Act, the applicable statutory provisions are:

Section 16(2) when determining applications, the local planning authority or the Secretary of
State, ‘shall have special regard to the desirability of preserving the building or its setting of any
features of special architectural or historic interest which it possesses’.

5.2 National Planning Policy Framework Sections

Paragraph 131 of the NPPF states that, local planning authorities should take into account:

‘the desirability of sustaining and enhancing the significance of heritage assets and putting them
to viable uses consistent with their conservation’.

Paragraph 132 of the NPPF states:

When considering the impact of a proposed development on the significance of a designated
heritage asset, great weight should be given to the asset’s conservation.

Paragraph 134 states that:

Where a development proposal will lead to less than substantial harm to the significance of a
designated heritage asset, this harm should be weighed against the public benefits of the
proposal, including securing its optimum viable use.

Royal Borough Local Plan

5.3 The main strategic planning considerations applying to the site and the associated policies are:

Listed Building
LB2

These policies can be found at
https://www3.rbwm.gov.uk/downloads/download/154/local_plan_documents_and_appendices

6. EXPLANATION OF RECOMMENDATION

6.1 The key issues for consideration are:

i The impact on the listed building

The impact on the listed building

6.2 The proposals are to create two new bathrooms on the first floor of the main Magna Carta House.
Currently the building has eight bedrooms with only two bathrooms, one of which is an en-suite to
the main bedroom, accessed through a dressing room. The proposal initially proposed three new
bathrooms, one located in bedroom 2 as an en-suite and the other two in the middle bedroom on
the southwest side of the building by splitting the room in half. This was resulting in a waste pipe
running under the length of the building which was seen to be unsympathetic and not the most
appropriate way of altering the building. After consulting with officers the applicant altered the
drawings to the current proposal. This is for two new bathrooms with the second located in the
current most south westerly bedroom. By moving the bathroom to this location it allows the waste

37



pipe to be run externally around the building and no longer involves the disturbance of historic
flooring. No objections to the application were made by either the Parish Council or Berkshire
Archaeology.

6.3 This part of the house has already had much of its internal finishes removed under the permission
granted in 2016 and there is an existing waste pipe that runs down to ground level and out of the
building. The proposal would involve less than significant harm to the remaining historic fabric,
which is outweighed by the continued optimum use of the building, with the acceptance that the
property needs modernisation and additional services.

7. CONSULTATIONS CARRIED OUT

Comments from interested parties

The planning officer posted a notice advertising the application at the site on 13.09.2017 and the
application was advertised in the Maidenhead & Windsor Advertiser on the 21.09.2017.

No letters have been received.

Statutory consultees

Consultee Comment Where in the
report this is
considered

Wraysbury
Parish Council

Noted the application was called in 6.2

Other consultees

Consultee Comment Where in the
report this is
considered

Archaeology No objection. Advise attaching a condition requiring
archaeological monitoring in view of the significance of any
13th century remains, even if the potential for them to be
present is low.

6.2 & 10

Conservation No objection following changes made. 6.2- 6.3

8. APPENDICES TO THIS REPORT

 Appendix A - Site location plan and site layout

 Appendix B – plan drawings

9. CONDITIONS RECOMMENDED FOR INCLUSION IF PERMISSION IS GRANTED

1. The works/demolition shall commence not later than three years from the date of this consent.
Reason: In accordance with the requirements of Section 18 of the Planning (Listed Buildings and
Conservation Areas) Act 1990 (as amended) and to avoid unimplemented consents remaining
effective after such lapse of time that relevant considerations may have changed.

2. No development shall take place until an archaeological watching brief in relation to the new
drainage works has been submitted and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The
work shall be undertaken in accordance with the approved details unless otherwise agreed in
writing by the Local Planning Authority.
Reason: To ensure that any finds of archaeological interest are preserved in situ or recorded.
Relevant Policies - Local Plan ARCH2, ARCH4.

38



3. The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the approved plans
listed below.
Reason: To ensure that the development is carried out in accordance with the approved particulars
and plans.

39



 
Appendix A— Site location plan and site layout  

40



Appendix B— Plan Drawings – Existing Ground Floor Plan 

 

41



Proposed Ground Floor Plan 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

42



Existing First Floor Plan 

 

43



Proposed First Floor Plan 

 

44



Proposed Roof Plan 

 

45



WINDSOR RURAL DEVELOPMENT CONTROL PANEL

15 November 2017 Item: 3
Application
No.:

17/02903/FULL

Location: Land At Priory Lodge Priory Road Sunningdale Ascot
Proposal: Construction of a detached five bedroom dwelling and integral garage,

with associated access, landscaping and boundary treatment
Applicant: Mr Scott
Agent: Mr Jason O'Donnell
Parish/Ward: Sunningdale Parish/Sunningdale Ward

If you have a question about this report, please contact: Claire Pugh on 01628
685739 or at claire.pugh@rbwm.gov.uk

1. SUMMARY

1.1 The proposal is considered to be in keeping with the pattern of development in this
area, and whilst the proposal may not be typical of the general characteristics of ‘Villas
in a Woodland Setting’, in this case the scale and form of development is not
considered to be out of keeping with dwellings in the local area, and complies with
Policy NP/DG1.2 of the Neighbourhood Plan.

1.2 The new dwelling would be visible from neighbouring properties, however, it is not
considered that the proposed dwelling would result in unacceptable levels of
overlooking, be unduly overbearing or result in a significant loss of light to neighbouring
dwellings.

1.3 The site is within the 400 metre zone of the Thames Basin Heaths Special Protection
Area. Within this zone any development that constitutes a net increase in residential
dwellings (class C3) is prohibited within this zone. In this case, it is proposed that two
flats on Chobham Road will be converted back into one dwelling as mitigation for this
increase in residential unit. As such this will result in no net increase in dwellings within
the exclusion zone, and so there should not be an increase in recreational disturbance
to the Thames Basin Heaths SPA.

It is recommended the Panel authorises the Head of Planning:

1. To grant planning permission on the satisfactory completion of an undertaking to
secure suitable mitigation for the impact on the Thames Basin Heaths Special
Protection Area, with the conditions listed in Section 10 of this report.

2. To refuse planning permission if an undertaking to secure the mitigation for the
impact on the Special Protection Area is not completed by the 22nd December 2017
(unless otherwise agreed by the Head of Planning) for the reason that the
development would have an unacceptable impact on the Thames Basin Heaths
Special Protection Area.

2. REASON FOR PANEL DETERMINATION

 At the request of Councillor Bateson, if the recommendation of the Head of Planning is to
approve the application, the residents have asked for this application to go to the Rural
Planning Panel as the new application has fail to address the Appeal Planning Inspector’s
comments on the SPA and other comments he made in his decision.

46



3. DESCRIPTION OF THE SITE AND ITS SURROUNDINGS

3.1 The application site comprises an area of land to the rear of Priory Lodge. There is
an outbuilding on the site, and the site is partly overgrown. Looking at the planning
history for Priory Lodge, this land formed part of the garden to Priory Lodge (situated
to the south west of the application site). Trees are situated along the boundaries of
the site. Access is gained to the site off a private access road which also serves
Ashbury House. The site within the ‘Villas in a Woodland Setting’ according to the
Townscape Assessment.

3.2 The site is situated within 400 metres of the Thames Basin Heaths Special Protection
Area.

4. DESCRIPTION OF THE PROPOSAL AND ANY RELEVANT PLANNING HISTORY

Reference Description Decision
10/02174/OUT
(Priory Lodge)

Outline permission with some matters
reserved for the construction of a
replacement detached house.

Granted on
25/08/11.

11/01758/OUT Outline application (with appearance,
landscaping, layout and scale reserved)
for the construction of a replacement
detached dwelling with attached garage.

Granted on 25th

August 2011.

12/01342/REM
(Priory Lodge)

Reserved Matters application pursuant to
outline planning permission 11/01758 for
the construction of a replacement
detached dwelling with attached garage.

Approved on
10/07/12.

16/00340/FULL
(for the
application site).

Erection of detached four bedrooms
dwelling with attached garage.

Withdrawn on the
11th May 2016.

16/02810/FULL Erection of a detached five bedroom
dwelling with attached garage.

Refused on the
19th January
2017, a
subsequent
appeal was
dismissed on 3rd

August 2017.

4.1 Planning permission is sought for the erection of a detached dwelling with attached
garage on land to the rear of Priory Lodge. This is a resubmission of 16/02810 which
was refused earlier this year and dismissed on appeal in August 2017, wherein the
Inspector concluded “whilst I have found the proposal to be acceptable in terms of its
effects on the character and appearance of the area and living conditions, this does
not outweigh the harm I have found in relation to the SPA”. The application site would
have once formed the garden to Priory Lodge, but this has been separated off with the
planting of trees.

4.2 The proposed dwelling would be 8.6 metres in height. The dwelling would have a low
eaves height on the front elevation. The dwelling would be finished in red facing
brickwork and Tudor boarding with render panels.

4.3 An access road would be laid down to the front of the site. The scheme retains spacing
between the side boundaries and the proposed dwelling, and the rear garden area

47



would have a depth of over 20 metres. Priory Lodge would retain a garden depth of
circa 21 metres.

5. MAIN RELEVANT STRATEGIES AND POLICIES RELEVANT TO THE DECISION

5.1 National Planning Policy Framework Sections:

Section 17 - Securing a good standard of amenity for all
Sections 61 and 64 - Design
Section 118 - Biodiversity

Royal Borough Local Plan

5.2 The main strategic planning considerations applying to the site and the associated
policies are:

Within settlement
area

Highways and
Parking

DG1, H11 P4, T5

Ascot, Sunninghill and Sunningdale Neighbourhood Plan policies:

NP/EN3- Gardens
NP/DG1- Respecting townscape
NP/DG2- Density, footprint, separation, scale and bulk
NP/DG3- Good quality design
NP/T1- Parking and access

These policies can be found at
https://www3.rbwm.gov.uk/downloads/download/154/local_plan_documents_and_ap
pendices

https://www3.rbwm.gov.uk/info/200414/local_development_framework/478/ascot_sun
ninghill_andsunningdale_neighbourhood_plan

More information on these documents can be found at:
https://www3.rbwm.gov.uk/info/200414/local_development_framework/494/suppleme
ntary_planning

Other Local Strategies or Publications

5.3 Other Strategies or publications relevant to the proposal are:

 RBWM Townscape Assessment – view at:
 RBWM Parking Strategy – view at:

More information on these documents can be found at:
https://www3.rbwm.gov.uk/info/200414/local_development_framework/494/suppleme
ntary_planning

6. EXPLANATION OF RECOMMENDATION

6.1 The key issues for consideration are:

48



i Impact on the character and appearance of the area;

ii Impact on neighbouring residential amenity;

iii Parking and Highway Safety;

iv Impact on the Thames Basin Heaths Special Protection Area

Impact on the character and appearance of the area

6.2 In looking at the pattern and form of development in the area, it is evident that
dwellings along Priory Road do not follow a set building line and that dwellings are set
back from this road, such as Ashbury House and Home End. It is not considered the
proposed dwelling would appear out of keeping with the pattern of development in this
area.

6.3 Looking at the form and level of development proposed, it is acknowledged that the
building to plot ratio will be higher than surrounding plots, but not significantly for it to
be out of keeping with the character of the area. The development would allow for a
rear garden area with a depth in excess of 20 metres, which is similar to other garden
depths in the area, and gaps ranging between 2 to 5 metres would be retained
between the proposed dwelling and site boundaries, which is considered to be
adequate spacing.

6.4 It is acknowledged that the application site formed part of the garden to Priory Lodge;
the approved plans for the replacement dwelling at Priory Lodge (reference 12/01342),
show this land as part of a garden area for this dwelling, however, the proposed
subdivision of the plot would allow for Priory Lodge to retain a garden in excess of 20
metres in depth, which is considered to be in keeping with the area. It is considered
that the scheme would meet the requirements of Policies NP/DG1 policies NP/DG1,
NP/DG2 and Policy NP/EN3.

6.5 Turning to the appearance of the dwelling, there is a mix of styles of dwellings in the
area, and it is considered that the appearance of the dwelling, with the use of front
gables and dormer windows has an acceptable impact on the character and
appearance of the area.

Impact on neighbouring residential amenity

6.6 Measuring from a plan previously approved for Home End (reference 10/00347) and
from OS maps, the dwelling known as Home End is 17 metres off the application site
boundary (at the closest point). Given the distance (over 17 metres) between Home
End and the proposed dwelling, it is not considered that there would be an
unacceptable reduction in daylight to any habitable room windows in Home End. In
respect of the impact on the garden area of Home End, the proposed dwelling will be
visible from the garden area of this dwelling, however, Home End has a large garden
area and so it is not considered that the dwelling would be unduly overbearing to this
garden area or would result in an unacceptable loss of light.

6.7 There are side facing windows in the proposed dwelling which would face the garden
area of Home End, however a condition (see condition 10) is recommended to ensure
these have a top opening and are obscurely glazed in order to prevent unacceptable
overlooking into this garden. The windows in the rear elevation of the proposed

49



dwelling would provide limited views to the garden of Home End, but because this
elevation is angled away, the views provided would not be unacceptable to warrant
refusal on this ground.

6.8 Turning to the impact on number 114 Chobham Road (Hope Cottage) (to the North-
east), the proposed dwelling would face number 114, however, with a distance ranging
from 20 to 26 metres between the rear elevation of the proposed dwelling and the
boundary with number 114, it is not considered that the dwelling would result in
unacceptable levels of overlooking, reduction in daylight or would be unduly
overbearing to this garden or the dwelling. The application site is at a higher level than
the ground at Hope Cottage, but the changes in ground levels are not considered to
be so significant that the dwelling would be elevated above this neighbouring land. A
condition is recommended to secure details of existing and proposed ground levels
and the finished slab level (see condition 3).

6.9 In respect of Ashbury House (to the north-west), the proposed dwelling would be sited
over 12 metres from the elevation which faces the application site. This distance is
considered suffice for there not to be an unacceptable reduction in daylight to windows
in this dwelling. In addition, the area to the front of Ashbury House that the proposed
dwelling would impact the most is the driveway area, which is not a private amenity
space. The impact on this dwelling is considered to be acceptable.

Parking and Highway Safety

6.10 The construction of a 5 bedroom dwelling has the potential to generate between 10 –
20 vehicle movements per day. The proposal would be accessed by the existing private
drive, which provides sufficient visibility splays in each direction when exiting the site
onto Priory Road. The scheme is considered to have an acceptable impact on highway
safety.

6.11 The scheme would allow for at least 3 car parking spaces to be provided on site, which
meets the Council’s parking standards as set out in the Council’s Parking Strategy.

Impact on the Thames Basin Heaths Special Protection Area

6.12 The site is situated within 400 metres of the Thames Basin Heaths Special Protection
Area (SPA). Within this zone any development that constitutes a net increase in
residential dwellings (class C3) is prohibited within this zone. In this case, it is proposed
that two flats on Chobham Road being converted back into one dwelling as mitigation
for this increase in residential unit. It was established under reference16/00336/CPD
that planning permission was not required for this conversion. As such this will result
in no net increase in dwellings within the exclusion zone, and so there should not be
an increase in recreational disturbance to the Thames Basin Heaths SPA.

6.13 Provided that a S106 legal agreement is entered into to secure this mitigation then the
impact upon the SPA is considered to be acceptable. A S106 is currently being
progressed, but at the time of writing has not been completed, but looks to secure the
conversion of the 2 flats to 1 dwelling for the lifetime of this development through the
use of appropriate clauses. It is recommended that planning permission is only
granted, when the Council is in receipt of the completed s106 which achieves
satisfactory mitigation.

Other Material Considerations

Housing Land Supply

50



6.14 It is acknowledged that this scheme would make a contribution to the Borough’s
housing stock and it is the view of the Local Planning Authority that the socio-economic
benefits of the additional dwelling(s) would also weigh in favour of the development,
on the basis that adequate mitigation for the SPA can be secured.

Appeal Decision

6.15 In August 2017, the Planning Inspector considered the scheme that has been
resubmitted for consideration under this application. Application referenced 16/02810
was refused for the following reasons:

1 The development due to the scale of the building and the amount of
plot covered would be cramped and represent an overdevelopment of
the site and would be visually intrusive. The harm caused is significant
and demonstrable. The proposed dwelling would be out of keeping with
the character of the area (Villas in a Woodland Setting) contrary to Local
Plan policy H11 and with policies NP DG1.1. And 1.2 and NP/DG2.2 of
the Ascot, Sunninghill and Sunningdale Neighbourhood Plan.

2 The proximity of the proposed building to the site boundaries will result
in overlooking, a perception of being overlooked, and a loss of privacy
to neighbouring properties and will give a poor standard of amenity to
the proposed dwelling and its neighbouring properties. The scheme
therefore fails to comply with a core principle of the National Planning
Policy Framework which is to always seek to secure high quality design
and a good standard of amenity for all existing and future occupants of
land and buildings.

3 The proposal is likely to have a significant effect in combination with
other plans and projects in the locality on the Thames Basin Heaths
Special Protection Area [SPA] as designated under The Conservation
(Natural Habitats, etc) Regulations, and which is also designated as a
Site of Special Scientific Interest [SSSI]. This would arise through
increased visitor and recreational pressure on Chobham Common, as
a constituent part of the SPA, causing disturbance to three species of
protected, ground-nesting birds that are present at the site. In the
absence of an assessment to show no likely significant effect, including
sufficient mitigation measures to overcome any such impact on the
SPA, the likely adverse impact on the integrity of this European nature
conservation site has not been overcome. The proposal is thus in
conflict with the guidance and advice in the National Planning Policy
Framework, Policy NRM6 of the South East Plan and the RBWM
Thames Basin Heaths Special Protection Area SPD (Part 1).

6.16 The Inspector found the scheme to have an acceptable impact on the character and
appearance of the area and an acceptable impact upon the amenity of neighbouring
residential properties. However the appeal was dismissed as a signed legal agreement
to secure the necessary mitigation for the SPA has not been secured at that time. The
appeal decision is material consideration of significant weight in the determination of
this planning application. As such, provided that a satisfactory legal agreement is in
place to secure mitigation for the SPA, then the appeal decision weighs heavily in
favour of this scheme being approved.

51



7. COMMUNITY INFRASTRUCTURE LEVY (CIL)

7.1 The proposal is CIL liable but would attract an exemption if the applicant claims a self-
build exemption. In the absence of a self-build exemption the CIL liability, based upon
the chargeable residential floor area (£240/per sq.m) would be circa £99,840.

8. CONSULTATIONS CARRIED OUT

Comments from interested parties

10 occupiers were notified directly of the application.

The planning officer posted a site notice advertising the application at the site on the
19th September 2016 and 10 properties were directly notified.

3 letters were received objecting to the application, summarised as:

Comment
Where in the
report this is
considered

1. The development is backland development, and the dwelling is too
large for the plot. The development would be out of keeping with the
character of the area.

6.2-6.5

2.
The development would have an unacceptable impact on the Special
Protection Area. There is no signed legal agreement to secure
mitigation with this application, and this was a reason the Inspector
dismissed the previous scheme.

6.12-6.13

3. The development will result in unacceptable overlooking to Home
End, and increased noise pollution.

6.6-6.9

4. Concerns over construction traffic impact. See
recommended
condition

5. The dwelling will overlook 5 neighbouring properties, and overshadow
the garden of Hope Cottage.

6.6-6.9

6. Concerns over traffic safety 6.10-6.11

Consultees

Consultee Comment
Where in the
report this is
considered

Parish Council The Planning Committee considered this application at its
meeting on 24 October 2017, and objects to this
application.

The previous application for a development on this site
(16/02810) was dismissed on appeal
(APP/T0355/W/17/3169962).

6.12-6.13

52



The Appeal Decision to dismiss focused on the harmful
impact to the Thames Basin Heaths Special Protection
Area (SPA).

This application fails to address the requirement to have a
legal obligation in place prior to planning approval - and
planning permission should be refused until a signed and
dated obligation is produced which is acceptable to the
Council to mitigate the impact of this development on the
SPA.

9. APPENDICES TO THIS REPORT

 Appendix A - Site location plan and site layout

 Appendix B - Elevations

 Appendix C - Floor Plans

10. CONDITIONS RECOMMENDED FOR INCLUSION IF PERMISSION IS GRANTED
REASONS

1 The development hereby permitted shall be commenced within three years from the
date of this permission.
Reason: To accord with the provisions of Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning
Act 1990 (as amended).

2 Prior to the construction of the dwelling hereby approved, samples of the materials to
be used on the building shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local
Planning Authority. The development shall be carried out and maintained in
accordance with the approved details.
Reason: In the interests of the visual amenities of the area. Relevant Policy - Local
Plan DG1.Neighbourhood Plan Policy NP/DG3

3 No development shall take place until a detailed plans showing the existing and
proposed ground levels of the site together with the slab and ridge levels of the
proposed development, relative to a fixed datum point on adjoining land outside the
application site (No 114 Chobham Road), have been submitted to and approved in
writing by the local planning authority. The development shall be carried out in
accordance with the approved levels.
Reason: In the interest of the visual amenities of the area. Relevant Policy - Local Plan

DG1.

4 Prior to the commencement of any works of demolition or construction a management
plan showing how demolition and construction traffic, (including cranes), materials
storage, facilities for operatives and vehicle parking and manoeuvring will be
accommodated during the works period shall be submitted to and approved in writing
by the Local Planning Authority. This shall also include a photographic highway
condition survey of the shared access road. The plan shall be implemented as
approved and maintained for the duration of the works or as may be agreed in writing
by the Local Planning Authority.
Reason: In the interests of highway safety and the free flow of traffic. Relevant Policies
- Local Plan T5.

6 Prior to the construction of the dwelling hereby approved, full details of both hard and

53



soft landscape works, shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local
Planning Authority and these works shall be carried out as approved within the first
planting season following the substantial completion of the development and retained
in accordance with the approved details. If within a period of five years from the date
of planting of any tree or shrub shown on the approved landscaping plan, that tree or
shrub, or any tree or shrub planted in replacement for it, is removed, uprooted or
destroyed or dies, or becomes seriously damaged or defective, another tree or shrub
of the same species and size as that originally planted shall be planted in the
immediate vicinity, unless the Local Planning Authority gives its prior written consent
to any variation.
Reason: To ensure a form of development that maintains, and contributes positively
to, the character and appearance of the area. Relevant Policies - Local Plan DG1.
Neighbourhood Plan Policy NP/DG3.

7 Prior to the first occupation of the dwelling hereby approved, details of the siting and
design of all walls, fencing or any other means of enclosure (including any retaining
walls) shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.
Such walls, fencing or other means of enclosure as may be approved shall be erected
before first occupation of the development unless the prior written approval of the Local
Planning Authority to any variation has been obtained.
Reason: To ensure the satisfactory resultant appearance and standard of amenity of
the site and the surrounding area. Relevant Policy - Local Plan DG1.

8 No part of the development shall be occupied until vehicle parking and turning space
has been provided, surfaced and marked out in accordance with the approved drawing.
The space approved shall be kept available for parking and turning in association with
the development.
Reason: To ensure that the development is provided with adequate parking facilities
in order to reduce the likelihood of roadside parking which could be detrimental to the
free flow of traffic and to highway safety, and to facilitate vehicles entering and leaving
the highway in forward gear. Relevant Policies - Local Plan P4, DG1.

9 Irrespective of the provisions of Classes A, B and E of part 1 of Schedule 2 of the Town
and Country Planning (General Permitted Development) Order 2015 (or any order
revoking and re-enacting that Order with or without modification) no enlargement,
improvement or any other alteration (including the erection of any ancillary building
within the curtilage) of or to any dwelling house the subject of this permission shall be
carried out without planning permission having first been obtained from the Local
Planning Authority.
Reason: The prominence of the site requires strict control over the form of any
additional development which may be proposed. Relevant Policies - Local Plan H11,
DG1. Neighbourhood Plan Policies NP/DG1, NP/DG3

10 The first floor window(s) in the south-east (side) elevation(s) of the dwelling shall be of
a permanently fixed, non-opening design, with the exception of an opening toplight that
is a minimum of 1.7m above the finished internal floor level, and fitted with obscure
glass. No further windows shall be inserted in this elevation at first floor level. No
windows shall be inserted in the north-west elevation at first floor level.
Reason: To prevent overlooking and loss of privacy to neighbouring occupiers, in
accordance with the requirements of the National Planning Policy Framework.

11 Prior to the installation of any external lighting for the proposed development, details
(including positioning, type and lux levels) shall be submitted to and approved in writing
by the Local Planning Authority. The development shall be carried out in accordance
with the approved details and so maintained thereafter.

54



Reason: In the interests of the visual amenities of the area. Relevant Policies - Local
Plan DG1

12 The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the
approved plans listed below.
Reason: To ensure that the development is carried out in accordance with the
approved particulars and plans.

55



Appendix A- Site location plan  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

56



Appendix B- Proposed layout  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

57



Appendix C- Proposed elevations and floorplans  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

58



 

 

 

59



This page is intentionally left blank



Planning Appeals Received

11 October 2017 - 3 November 2017

WINDSOR RURAL

The appeals listed below have been received by the Council and will be considered by the 
Planning Inspectorate.  Further information on planning appeals can be found at 
https://acp.planninginspectorate.gov.uk/  Should you wish to make comments in connection with an 
appeal, please use the PIns reference number and write to the relevant address, shown below.  

Enforcement appeals:  The Planning Inspectorate, Room 3/23 Hawk Wing, Temple Quay House, 2 
The Square, Temple Quay, Bristol, BS1 6PN or email 
teame1@pins.gsi.gov.uk 

Other appeals:  The Planning Inspectorate Room 3/10A Kite Wing Temple Quay House 2 The 
Square Bristol BS1 6PN or email teamp13@pins.gsi.gov.uk 

Ward:
Parish: Sunningdale Parish
Appeal Ref.: 17/60098/REF Planning Ref.: 17/00939/CPD PIns Ref.: APP/T0355/X/17/31

82211
Date Received: 31 October 2017 Comments Due: 12 December 2017
Type: Refusal Appeal Type: Written Representation
Description: Certificate of Lawfulness to determine whether the proposed erection of outbuilding (leisure 

building) and provision of related hard standing is lawful.
Location: Greenwood  The Covert Ascot SL5 9JS
Appellant: Mr M Willis c/o Agent: Mr Murray Chrystal Woolf Bond Planning The Mitfords  Basingstoke 

Road Three Mile Cross Reading RG7 1AT United Kingdom

61

Agenda Item 5

https://acp.planninginspectorate.gov.uk/
mailto:teame1@pins.gsi.gov.uk
mailto:teamp13@pins.gsi.gov.uk


Appeal Decision Report

11 October 2017 - 3 November 2017

WINDSOR RURAL

Appeal Ref.: 17/60028/REF Planning Ref.: 15/02727/FULL PIns Ref.: APP/T0355/W/16/
3160065

Appellant: Mr Rob Bolton - Altitude (Ascot) Ltd c/o Agent: Mr Matthew Stimson Shoosmiths LLP Witan 
Gate House 500 - 600 Witan Gate West Milton Keynes MK9 1SH

Decision Type: Delegated Officer Recommendation: Refuse
Description: Redevelopment of the waste transfer station to provide 12 No. dwellings and associated 

landscaping and car parking.
Location: Oakfield Farm Wells Lane Ascot SL5 7DY 
Appeal Decision: Allowed Decision Date: 17 October 2017

Main Issue: Proposal amounts of inappropriate development in Green Belt and would be harmful to 
character of the area. It was considered that the proposal would have a neutral impact on 
openness. Against the harm there are moderate benefits arising from the cessation of the use, 
significant benefits relating to remediation of the site, the woodland and ecology and 
substantial benefits in relation to housing provision. Collectively these represent benefits that 
would clearly outweigh the totality of the harm identified. Given the findings in regards to the 
Green Belt the proposal is considered to be sustainable development and in respect of the 
presumption set out in paragraph 14 of the Framework should not be resisted.

62



Appeal Ref.: 17/60070/NOND
ET

Planning Ref.: 17/01065/FULL PIns Ref.: APP/T0355/W/17/
3177412

Appellant: Heywood Real Estate Ltd c/o Agent: Mr Robert Clarke R Clarke Planning Ltd Kewferry Farm 
Rickmansworth Road Northwood Middlesex HA6 2RF

Decision Type: Delegated Officer Recommendation: Would Have 
Refused

Description: Erection of two detached houses with integral garages and revised access arrangements, 
following the demolition of the existing house.

Location: The Chalet Ravensdale Road Ascot SL5 9HJ 
Appeal Decision: Dismissed Decision Date: 26 October 2017

Main Issue: The Inspector concluded that the shadowing caused by protected trees would significantly 
reduce the amenity of the back garden of plot 2 and would prevent light reaching the habitable 
rooms at the back of the house. This effect on the living environment of the future occupiers 
of plot 2 would lead to a significant risk of pressure to severely cut-back or fell them. The 
Inspector considered that the loss of these trees would reduce the wooded setting of the site 
and its contribution to the sylvan character of the area.  The Inspector acknowledged that the 
proposal would contribute to reducing the Council's housing land supply shortfall and provide 
a social benefit. It would bring economic benefits from its construction and from the spending 
in the local economy of the future occupiers. However, as the proposal would provide only 2 
houses, these benefits in the economic and social dimensions of sustainable development 
weigh only modestly in favour of the proposal. The Inspector concluded therefore that they 
would be significantly and demonstrably outweighed by the adverse impact of the development 
on the character of the surrounding area.

Appeal Ref.: 17/60080/REF Planning Ref.: 16/03202/FULL PIns Ref.: APP/T0355/D/17/
3175740

Appellant: Mr Stuart Kinner c/o Agent: Mr Neil Davis Davis Planning Ltd 19 Woodlands Avenue 
Winnersh Wokingham Berkshire RG41 3HL

Decision Type: Delegated Officer Recommendation: Refuse
Description: Replace existing property border with new wall, pillars, rear fence panels and front railings 

(retrospective).
Location: 2 Oakdene Sunningdale Ascot SL5 0BU 
Appeal Decision: Dismissed Decision Date: 11 October 2017

Main Issue: The Inspector found that the perceived benefits of the scheme to the appellant, without 
appropriate long-term mitigation, are clearly outweighed by the harm caused to the public 
realm (impact on street scene).

63



Appeal Ref.: 17/60082/REF Planning Ref.: 16/03443/FULL PIns Ref.: APP/T0355/D/17/
3178951

Appellant: Mr Christopher Barry c/o Agent: Mr Peter Bird Bird Charles Surveyors Ltd Unit 1 Queen 
Square Ascot Business Park Lyndhurst Road Ascot SL5 9FE

Decision Type: Delegated Officer Recommendation: Refuse
Description: Two storey side extension
Location: 22 Murray Court Ascot SL5 9BP 
Appeal Decision: Dismissed Decision Date: 19 October 2017

Main Issue: The Inspector concluded that the proposed development would have an unacceptably harmful 
effect on the character and appearance of the area.  It would conflict with Policies DG1 and 
H14 of the Local Plan and Policies NG/DG2 and NP/DG3 of the Ascot, Sunninghill and 
Sunningdale Neighbourhood Plan 2014.  The development would also conflict with the 
Council's Guidance Note 1 on House Extensions which specifies that a minimum gap of at 
least one metre should be kept between any wall of a two storey extension and a boundary 
with an adjoining property to provide a visual separation between properties.

64



Document is Restricted

65

Agenda Item 7
By virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 6, 7, 7a, 7b, 7c of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2 Declarations of Interest
	LOCAL GOVERNMENT.docx access to info.pdf
	Declaring Interests at Meetings (Oct 2015).pdf

	3 Minutes
	4 Planning Applications (decision)
	15Nov2017WRural
	item 1.pdf
	17-02294.pdf
	item 2.pdf
	17-02705.pdf
	item 3.pdf
	17-02903.pdf


	5 Essential Monitoring Reports (monitoring)
	7 Minutes

